SMARTLAB[®] EBOOKS

ESSER Funding Guide INVEST IN YOUTZ STUDENTS' SUCCESS



A Guide to Utilizing ARP ESSER III to Increase Engagement and Address Learning Loss in K-12 Students

smartlqb.

Table of Contents

CHAPTER 1: How to Utilize Funding to Find the Right Solution	3
Invest In Students' Long-Term Success	3
What Can ESSER Funding Be Used For?	3
CHAPTER 2: Using Project-Based Learning to Engage Students	5
CHAPTER 3: Engagement Is Critical to Student Success	7
Engagement Improves Outcomes	7
The Connection Between Strong PBL Programs and Engagement	8
CHAPTER 4: How SmartLab Learning Meets ESSER Criteria	11
SmartLab® Learning Alignment	11
ESSER Acceptable Uses	11
CHAPTER 5: SmartLab Learning—Engage Learners with Hands-on, Standards-Aligned Curriculum	12
Four Priorities for Planning Your ARP ESSER III Funding Allocation	
Ignite Students' Love of Learning Today With Our Comprehensive Solutions	15
FAQs: ESSER Funding & SmartLab Learning	16
Appendix	18
What Is ARP ESSER III? Key School Funding Acronyms	18
Terms of the ARP ESSER III Fund	18
Qualifications for ESSER Funding	19
How to Secure ARP ESSER III Funding for Your School or District	19



It's imperative that schools make use of funding like ARP ESSER III while it's available. ESSER III was designed to help schools reengage students, and keep them interested and motivated in class. Schools that have used their federal funding to implement project-based learning solutions have seen meaningful growth in student engagement and ability.

Chapter 1: How to Utilize Funding to Find the Right Solution

Invest in Students' Long-Term Success

It's imperative that schools make use of funding like ARP ESSER III while it's available. ESSER III was designed to help schools reengage students and accellerate their academic growth. Schools that have used their federal funding to implement project-based learning solutions have seen meaningful growth in student engagement and ability.

With a focus on student-led, project-based STEM engagements, SmartLab Learning delivers standardsaligned science and math programming while getting students excited about their schoolwork. Applying your ARP ESSER III funding to a sustainable, long-term solution like SmartLab Learning's solutions, can help your school address learning loss and other key issues by increasing student engagement—not just this year, but for years to come.

What Can ESSER Funding Be Used For?

In March 2020, many administrators were left to improvise a plan for remote learning. This led to a decrease in student engagement and increased levels of learning loss as many students struggled to log in to their online classes or turn in their work. Per the terms of ARP ESSER III, a portion of a local education agency's (LEA) ESSER III Fund allocation needs to address the "academic impact of lost instructional time." Look for solutions that have evidence-based activities, curriculum, and/or technology that fulfills students' academic, social, and emotional needs. With this guidance, schools should use their ARP ESSER III funding to address these immediate concerns:

- Implement student-led, project based learning engagements that mitigate learning loss while encouraging class attendance
- Update technology and modify spaces to support better 21st-century learning environments
- Include opportunities to apply core math and science skills through supplemental math and science curriculum
- Infuse learning engagements with collaborative activities that build critical "soft" skills

In addition to recommending extended school days, summer learning, or school-year programs, look for solutions that provide long-term returns on your investment of ARP ESSER III funds, such as:

- Supplemental classroom or after-school programs
- Educational technology, including hardware, software, and connectivity
- Solutions that address the unique needs of children from low-income families, children with disabilities, English learners, migrant students, and others

Tools to measure and address learning loss (e.g., assessments, school audits, faculty training)

All U.S. school districts are working to assess their available budgets and identify how to best use the federal stimulus money to invest in students' longterm success. SmartLab Learning's solutions can be purchased through many of the funding channels currently available to schools.



Sound Lovel

MACH

High quality project-based learning has been shown to have a positive effect on student engagement and learning. SmartLab Learning's unique approach to project-based learning engages students in hands-on, STEM-focused experiences that are supported by standards-aligned supplemental math and science curriculum.

AC-SNAP Power Sup

Chapter 2: Using Project-Based Learning to Engage Students

Missing assignments. Dwindling attendance. Disengaged students. This has been the experience for many teachers who switched to remote learning during the COVID-19 pandemic. Learning loss was rampant, and engagement was at an all-time low.

Now that students and teachers are back in classrooms, engagement is low, truancy is high, and the pressure to mitigate learning loss is immense. How do schools get students excited about learning again?

High quality project-based learning has been shown to have a positive effect on student engagement and learning. SmartLab Learning's unique approach to project-based learning engages students in handson, STEM-focused experiences that are supported by standards-aligned supplemental math and science curriculum. With this solution, learners choose projects they care about, collaborate with their peers, and present their findings—all while applying core concepts to what they're doing.

This resource serves as a guide to help you maximize your school's ARP ESSER III stimulus funding, particularly when it comes to providing engaging, equitable STEM programming that supports math and science standards—two areas where students commonly experience learning loss. Funding is crucial to reigniting students' interest in school and improving their learning retention and academic performance,

All guidance and recommendations included in this eBook are based on available information at the time of writing.





Chapter 3: Engagement Is Critical to Student Succes

Engagement Improves Outcomes

Research has demonstrated that engaging students in the learning process increases their attention and focus and motivates them to engage in higher-level critical thinking. Students who are actively engaged are more likely to view learning as a positive experience and retain important knowledge and skills.

One recent Gallup study including 128 schools and more than 110,000 students found that student engagement and hope were significantly positively related to student academic achievement in math, reading, and all subjects combined, along with postsecondary readiness in math and writing. The study found that schools in the top quartile of student engagement had significantly more students exceeding and meeting proficiency requirements than schools in the bottom quartile of engagement. When students are engaged in the learning process, they are less likely to lose interest in what they are taught. Engaged students are also more likely to excel in standardized tests and less likely to drop out.

Schools with higher student engagement show significantly lower incidents of negative student behavior compared to schools with lower student engagement—including lower rates of suspension, expulsions, truancies, and dropouts (Figure 2: Gallup, 2019). By focusing on solutions that have proven to positively impact student engagement, administrators set their students—and themselves—up for success.



The Connection Between Strong PBL Programs and Engagement

As its name suggests, project-based learning involves student projects, but projects in PBL classrooms are much more complex and intentional than a simple book report or Powerpoint presentation. Projects in an authentic project-based learning classroom are formed around students' interests and intended to highlight or resolve real-world issues.

When implemented correctly, project-based learning fosters the agency and empowerment essential to cognitive engagement. Not only does PBL promote student engagement and capitalize on natural student curiosities, it also fosters the development of important cognitive skills, including critical thinking, planning, and reasoning. Learners in PBL classrooms are also engaged in collaborative learning, which promotes the development of critical social skills, including empathy, communication, and cross-cultural understanding. This collaborative, authentic process correlates to higher student engagement and improved academic outcomes (Lucas Foundation, 2021).

In the SmartLab Learning environment, students get to explore their own interests at their own pace. As a result they stay on-task, use critical thinking, and achieve their personal and academic goals on a schedule that works for them.

Classrooms that support the PBL approach also foster learners who feel empowered, capable, and prepared to make a difference in the world. Yet another merit of project-based learning is that it lends itself to natural, authentic assessment.







Every SmartLab Learning Solution includes leadingedge, relevant technoloties that help students both bceome literate in current technologial tools and learn how to adapt to future technologies.

Chapter 4: How SmartLab Learning Meets ESSER Criteria

SmartLab Learning Alignment

SmartLab Learning programs are approved purchases under the ESEA Act.

SmartLab LearningHub provides equal opportunities to all students and is also designed to be accessible to students of any skill level or ability. In particular, students with special needs and ESL learners have excelled in SmartLab's hands-on, project-based learning framework.

SmartLab LearningHub provides supplemental digital resources students can access from home.

Every SmartLab Learning solution includes leadingedge, relevant technologies that help students not only become literate in current technological tools but also learn how to adapt to future technologies.

SmartLab Learning provides standards-aligned, supplemental curriculum that reinforces core math and science concepts.

Whether they're learning in remote or in-person settings, SmartLab learners engage with projects that are relevant and important to them. Students who are actively engaged with their learning tend to retain more core content and skills over time. SmartLab Learning also supports intervention efforts by providing accessibility tools and multiple modes of assessment.

ESSER Acceptable Uses

- Any activity authorized by ESEA, IDEA, AEFLA, Perkins, or McKinney-Vento.
- Activities to address the unique needs of lowincome children, children with disabilities, English learners, racial and ethnic minorities, students experiencing homelessness, and foster care youth, including outreach and service delivery.
- Planning for and coordinating during long-term closures, including technology for online learning, guidance for carrying out IDEA requirements, and providing educational services consistent with applicable requirements.
- Purchasing educational technology (including hardware, software, and connectivity).
- Planning and implementing summer learning and supplemental afterschool programs.
- Addressing learning loss.

Chapter 5: SmartLab Learning: Engage Learners with Hands-on, Standards-Aligned Curriculum

Every SmartLab Learning solution begins with student engagement.

We do this by:

- Providing a unique, student-led, project-based learning approach
- Designing technology-rich, 21st-century classroom environments
- Giving students opportunities to apply core math and science skills through our supplemental curriculum
- · Infusing collaborative learning into every experience

When they're actively engaged in their learning, students infuse core concepts with meaning and connect them to real-world applications. Plus, since every SmartLab Learning solution is intentionally designed for self-directed, collaborative work, students take ownership of their learning.

This also helps students build communication and problem-solving skills and nurtures their socialemotional development—critical after a period when much learning happened in physical isolation.

While they can, administrators should leverage their ARP ESSER III funding to address the academic and social-emotional impacts of extended remote learning on students.

Students who followed a project-based learning curriculum like SmartLab Learning experienced a 63% gain in social studies learning, equal to five or six months of increased learning. Altogether, this approach led to a 23% gain in informational reading—an additional two months of learning for the year (Duke et al, 2020).

Four priorities for planning your ARP ESSER III Funding allocation:



Build Real-World Connections Into Student Learning.

Students often ask their teachers, "But when will I use this?" With SmartLab Learning's project-based framework, students apply the concepts they're learning in core classes to help them solve real-world problems.

Introduce Programming that Allows for Student-Led Learning.

When students direct their own learning, they become increasingly able to apply creativity and problem solving at school and in their future careers (Feehan, 1999). SmartLab Learning's open-ended engagements leave room for students to learn at their own pace while providing opportunities for them to self-reflect and assess their progress along the way. Perhaps best of all, SmartLab Learning's remote and hybrid solutions can keep students engaged and able to direct themselves no matter where (or when) they're learning.



Use Technology to Motivate and Inspire.

From robots to weather mapping to 3D design, incorporating current and innovative technology into classroom learning is an excellent way to capture and keep students' attention. In a technology-rich environment like the SmartLab HQ, social interactions among students and between students and teachers become more fluid as users learn, demonstrate, and teach each other how to use new tools. Students make deeper connections to subject matter when they can touch, experiment, and share relevant new technologies (Hannafin, 1997).



At SmartLab Learning, we develop open-ended, project-based learning experiences that engage students at all grade levels in STEM. Our standardsaligned math and science curriculum empowers students to integrate their own ideas and creativity while providing them with opportunities to showcase authentic evidence of learning.



Ignite students' love of learning today with our comprehensive solutions:

smartlab, smartlab, studio

Our flagship learning program with fully stocked environments for K–12.

Robust video production and broadcasting systems that rival the pros.

Smartlab.

Our new integrated digital platform with STEAM focused and standards-aligned project starters that support the skills students need to problem solve, think critically, and build deep learning in a personalized way.

We infuse each solution with our five guiding principles for learning:



ENGAGED

Why: Engaged students are more focused in class, have fewer disciplinary issues, build stronger critical-thinking skills, and authentically connect to their learning.

How: We engage your students in hands-on, project-based learning experiences that support and reinforce academic content—specifically STEM topics.



EMPOWERED

Why: Empowered learners become empowered adults who are equipped with the next-gen skills required for post-secondary success.

How: We empower your students to own their learning and approach challenges with creativity. This helps them develop the confidence needed to thrive in a rapidly evolving world.



EXPERIENTIAL

Why: When learners use age-appropriate, pre- and professional tools in real-world settings, they're more prepared for college and career.

How: Through experiential learning, your students connect real-world problem-solving to core academic content, which helps them make more informed decisions in the future.



PERSONALIZED

Why: When learners have voice and choice to determine which projects they want to pursue, they are more intrinsically motivated.

How: With open-ended engagements, educators and facilitators collaborate on projects that support their students' achievement, while ensuring learners can pursue projects they're passionate about.



COLLABORATIVE

Why: Collaborative learning helps students develop higher-level thinking, verbal communication, self-management, and leadership skills, which prepares them for post-secondary success.

How: We purposely build collaboration into our learning spaces. Through collaborative work, learners use critical thinking to make meaning of facts, develop communication skills as they present their learning, and creatively solve problems.

ESSER Funding & SmartLab: Frequently Asked Questions

How will a SmartLab Learning solution help my students?

SmartLab Learning engages learners with open-ended, project-based experiences in which they choose to solve problems that are important to them. Increasing both student and teacher engagement can dramatically impact learning outcomes, since engaged teachers have more engaged learners (Fullan, 2013). Engaged learners also have fewer truancy issues and higher graduation rates (Trowler, 2010). Students in a SmartLab:

- Select and lead their own project-based activities with teacher support
- Thrive in technology-rich spaces
- Apply core math and science skills to problems with real-world connections
- Build autonomy, communication, collaboration, and problem-solving skills

How does SmartLab Learning support educators?

SmartLab facilitators have around-the-clock access to instructional resources, technical support, and ongoing education and workshops. Instructional training is part of our standard implementation process, so every educator is prepared to facilitate SmartLab Learning from day one.

Do SmartLab Learning solutions come with curriculum to engage students?

Yes. Every SmartLab experience starts with student engagement. We design our standards-aligned curriculum to help students connect core concepts to real-world problems in ways that spark their personal interests. As learners challenge themselves to work in teams or tackle new and exciting topics, they also build communication, collaboration, and problem-solving skills. Our online, integrated LearningHub platform facilitates both in-classroom and remote learning through self-directed, hands-on activities, so students are engaged in their learning no matter where they are.

Do SmartLab programs qualify under ARP ESSER III funds?

Yes. Since a minimum of 20% of an LEA's allocation must address learning loss, any program that implements evidence-based activities to fulfill students' academic, social, and emotional needs qualify for this funding. SmartLab Learning is designed by experienced educators and grounded in effective pedagogy. Our approach to project-based learning meets students' academic needs and fits hand-in-hand with socialemotional programs.

Where should I spend my school's ARP ESSER III allotment?

In addition to materials and supplies that ensure the health and safety of students and staff, the Department of Education recommends spending funds on solutions that will mitigate learning loss. Instead of "quick-fix" solutions, the best use of these funds is on long-term, sustainable programming that can serve and engage both current and future students, particularly in STEM subjects.

How can I access my ESSER funds?

A. School districts (LEAs) must apply to their relevant SEA. Every SEA must use at least 90% of its ESSER Fund grant to make subgrants to LEAs based on how much the LEAs receive through Title IA or No Child Left Behind Act.

How much flexibility do I have with my funding?

LEAs have considerable flexibility in determining how best to use ESSER funds. The U.S. Department of Education encourages LEAs to target activities that will reduce learning loss and support remote learning for all students (especially those who are disadvantaged or at risk of dropping out), and their teachers. LEAs may also use ESSER funds for personal protective equipment (PPE), cleaning and sanitizing materials, and similar health and safety supplies.

Timeline of the Elementary and Secondary School Relief Funds (ESSER)



Appendix

What Is ARP ESSER III? Key School Funding Acronyms

CARES Act: The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Stimulus Act is a \$2.2 trillion economic stimulus bill passed and signed into law on March 27, 2020, to address the economic fallout from the COVID-19 pandemic.

ESSER Fund: The CARES Act established the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund, which distributed an initial \$13.2 billion in school funding in March 2020 and has since disbursed two more rounds of funding to schools.

CRRSA Act: The Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, signed into law in December 2020, provided an additional \$54.3 billion in an ESSER II Fund.

ARP Act: The American Rescue Plan was signed into law in March 2021. It includes the American Rescue Plan Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ARP ESSER III) Fund, which allocates \$126 billion to K-12 schools.

The ESSER Fund is meant for state educational agencies (SEAs) and local educational agencies (LEAs) to help schools:

- Return safely to in-person instruction
- Maximize in-person instructional time
- Sustain the safe operation of schools
- Address the academic, social, emotional, and mental health impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on students

Terms of the ARP ESSER III Fund

According to the National Conference of State Legislatures, each state receives funds according to the amount they currently receive under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), Title IA, or No Child Left Behind Act.

The terms of the ARP ESSER III Fund, effective April 22, 2021, are as follows:

- SEAs must distribute at least 90% of funds to LEAs.
- SEAs are required to reserve 5% of their allocations to address learning loss, 1% for afterschool activities, and 1% for summer learning programs.
- LEAs must reserve at least 20% of the funding they receive to address learning loss.
- Two-thirds of funds are immediately available to states, while remaining funds will be made available after states submit ARP ESSER III implementation plans.
- States have the option to reserve 10% of the allocation for emergency needs related to the COVID-19 pandemic, as determined by the state (called the SEA Reserve).
- SEAs must award funds to LEAs within 60 days of receipt.
- Funds must be utilized for all intended purposes by LEAs by September 30, 2024.

Qualifications for ARP ESSER III Funding

For states to take advantage of ESSER funding, they must adhere to the following terms:

- Only SEAs in the 50 United States, Puerto Rico, and the District of Columbia may apply.
- Eligible recipients include LEAs (those that oversee public, private, and charter schools), organizations that serve students and families, and any entity that receives a subgrant or contract consistent with applicable state and federal subgrant and procurement standards.
- To receive funds, LEAs must submit an implementation plan and make it available for public comment.
- Funds are only available by direct application to the U.S. Department of Education.
- Recipients must intend to spend funding on any of the allowable activities stipulated in any of the coronavirus relief bills approved by Congress.

ESSER / ARP Resources & Links

The Office of Elementary & Secondary Education ARP

ARP State Allocation Table

ARP State Strategic Plan Template + State-by-State Application Information

ARP Resource for Non-Public Schools

*The Bureau of Indian Education and the Outlying Areas are not eligible to receive ESSER funds. Congress provides funds to these entities as part of a comprehensive Education Stabilization Fund.

How to Secure ARP ESSER III Funding for Your School or District

Every Local Education Agency (LEA) seeking to receive ESSER III funding must apply to their State Education Agency (SEA). Schools and LEAs should monitor their SEA's website for the latest updates and information on applications.

Since each state handles its own ESSER application process, follow these steps to start yours:

- 1. Visit your state government's website to access ARP ESSER III applications and list of required documents.
- 2. Ask your SEA to download and print the application.
- 3. Collect the required documents to provide to your SEA, including your implementation plan.
- 4. There is no deadline to submit your application; SEAs must award all ESSER funding by September 30, 2022.
- 5. LEAs/schools must spend their funds within one year of receipt, and before September 30, 2024. The Department of Education will monitor and has the right to audit spending.

ARP ESSER III funding is meant to help schools get back to their primary mission: To engage students in their learning and prepare them to build bright futures. SmartLab Learning is here to help.

LEARN MORE ABOUT SMARTLAB





© 2022 Creative Learning Systems 1801 Lefthand Circle, Suite A Longmont, Colorado 80501

Contact us today to learn about ESSER and other funding opportunities. www.SmartLabLearning.com | 800.458.2880